
AGENDA – August 15, 2012 

Strategic Tourism Planning Board 
Tompkins County 

 
Wednesday, August 15th, 2012 
3:00 pm – 4:30 pm, CVB 
 
Agenda 
 Finger Lakes Museum PRESENTATION – John Adamski – 15 minutes 
 Meeting Minutes - 3 minutes 

o ACTION – Adopt June minutes and July 9 special meeting minutes 
 Chair's REPORT – David Sparrow - 5 min 
 2012-2020 Strategic Tourism Plan – 20 min 

o ACTION – Recommend adoption 
 June-July CVB REPORT – Fred Bonn – 10 min 
 Tourism Partner Awards – 5 min 

o ACTION – Recommend awards 
 Membership and Bylaws ANNOUNCEMENT – 5 min 

o Fall 2012 recruitment of new members and officers 
 Community Celebrations Program UPDATE – Tom Knipe – 5 min 
 Announcements 
 
 
Attached (agenda packet): 

1. June STPB meeting minutes 
2. July 9 Special Meeting STPB meeting minutes 
3. June-July 2012 CVB Report 
4. Tourism Partner Award Program description and nominations 
5. STPB Member list 
6. Community Celebrations Grant updated guidelines 
7. STPB Letters of Support for NYS CFA – July 2012 
8. Tompkins County Strategic Tourism Plan – 2020 – attached separately 

 
 
 

 
 
MISSION: 
The Strategic Tourism Planning Board is charged by the 
Tompkins County Legislature with providing oversight and 
strategic direction for tourism initiatives that promote 
economic development and enhance the quality of life in 
Tompkins County. 
 

  

STPB Agenda Packet 8/15/12 Page 1 of 52



Tompkins County Strategic Tourism Planning Board (STPB) 
DRAFT Meeting Minutes – June 2012 

Page 1  

Date:  June 20, 2012   
Time:  3:00-5:00pm 
Location: Convention and Visitor’s Bureau 
 
Attendees: 

Name Representation 

Sue Perlgut exc Arts-Culture 

Sue Stafford  TC3 

Susie Monagan  Arts-Culture 

Tim Joseph  At-Large 

VACANT  At-Large 

Brett Bossard  CAP, Non-Voting 

Fred Bonn  CVB, Non-Voting 

Gary Ferguson  DIA, Non-Voting 

Jean McPheeters  Chamber, Non-Voting 

Martha Armstrong  TCAD, Non-Voting 

Will Burbank  TC Legislature, Non-Voting 

VACANT  Transportation, Non-Voting 

Tom Knipe  Staff 
 

Also in attendance: Philly DeSarno (City of Ithaca), Carol Kammen (Community Celebrations Committee 
Chair), Jennifer Kusznir (City), Svante Myrick (City), Diana Riesman (IMPP), Ronda Roaring 
(ILovetheFingerLakes.com), Rommia White (LaTourelle intern), Kathy Wilsea (Tompkins County Planning 
Dept.), Todd Zwigard (IMPP Architect) 
 
Agenda 
Approval of minutes for May, 2011 STPB meeting 
Chair's report 
Ithaca Commons Redesign Presentation  
IMPP Presentation 
2013 Tourism Budget Committee Recommendation – Discussion 
May CVB Report 
 
Discussion 
The meeting was called to order at 3:12 PM.  Visitor introductions were made.   
 
May minutes were approved unanimously without change.   
 
Chair’s Report was moved to the end of the meeting. 
 
Ithaca Commons Redesign Presentation – Mayor Svante Myrick presented a slide show and 
spoke of the plans for the Commons. The mission is to strengthen the Commons as the core of 
the City by seeking more housing, hotels and people. The infrastructure is now under the middle 
of the Commons, but the fun things – trees, playgrounds, stages – are also in the middle.  
Changes would be made while infrastructure is updated. Moving the trees to the sides will provide 
a clear view down the center.  Plans include one pavilion in Bank Alley at Seneca Street, a water 
play area, and improved signage. The Commons is important because it is a community icon, 
nationally known feature, central community gathering place, commercial and employment hub, 
transportation hub, and major visitor destination. Fred Bonn pointed out that visitors sometimes 
report they have been disappointed with their trip to the Commons, so he feels it is at a tipping 
point regarding living up to expectations. Mayor Myrick said development proposals for hotels, 
housing and mixed use will bring more visitors, and acknowledged that the Holiday Inn 

Name Representation 

Anne Kellerman At-Large 

Anthony Hopson exc Ithaca College, Vice-Chair 

Beverly Baker  At-Large 

David Sparrow  At-Large, Chair 

Ethan Ash  Arts-Culture 

Gary Stewart  Cornell 

Jon Reis  Arts-Culture 

Ken Jupiter  At-Large 

Paul Tatar exc Recreation 

Rick Adie  Lodging 

Rita Rosenberg Agriculture 

Scott Wiggins  Lodging 

Stuart Stein  At-Large 

STPB Agenda Packet 8/15/12 Page 2 of 52



Tompkins County Strategic Tourism Planning Board (STPB) 
DRAFT Meeting Minutes – June 2012 

Page 2  

renovations, which include a convention center, will bring visitors in the middle of the week. 
Funding is still needed for the Commons project, with the current gap at $0.5 million.  To be 
successful, the project needs broad-based community support and community participation. 
 
During discussion, Mayor Myrick said that the City should find out soon, maybe next week, if 
federal funds are secured. Most applications are for transportation program funds. If sufficient 
funds are secured, groundbreaking will be in spring 2013. The City is also applying for funding 
through the current CFA round. A presentation has not yet been made to County Legislature 
members who represent City residents, nor to elected officials of towns. Mayor Myrick 
acknowledged the need to be clear to the public on infrastructure, aesthetics, and management 
plans. A design approval timeline will be determined when funding is approved. Cornell staff are 
helping with contacts with the Southern Tier Economic Development Council. 
 
Ithaca Motion Picture Project Presentation – Diana Riesman provided a brief history of silent 
movies in Ithaca, and IMPP’s plans for a museum in Stewart Park. Over 100 silent films were 
produced here at Wharton Studio in then-Renwick Park. The building is currently used for storage 
by the City, and is one of a handful of silent movie studios still in existence. Ithaca’s Board of 
Public Works recently voted unanimously to support the plan of IMPP, and IMPP also has the 
support of many area businesses. They feel this museum can help revitalize Stewart Park.  Todd 
Zwigart showed an architect’s rendering of the design, which adds a second floor to the front of 
the building; creates an entrance, café and gift/book shop; provides natural light in the main space 
by adding dormers, and creates an iconic element to show modern use of a historic building by 
adding a digital marquee and programmable exterior screens.  The plaza will also function as 
parking and fire lane. 
 
2013 Tourism Budget Committee Recommendations – Committee Chair Rick Adie reviewed 
the process. At the STPB meeting last month, he spoke of projections for 2013. Program 
Administrators and Committee Chairs submitted requests to the Budget Committee through use 
of a uniform format which committee members found very useful. Submissions included priorities 
and what would be cut if the overall request was not fully funded. All program committee requests 
were included in the agenda packet, along with a summary chart. Rick reviewed the summary 
chart and stated that recommendations are scheduled to be discussed at PDEQ on July 11. The 
Budget Committee recommends a set aside of funds for implementation of the Strategic Tourism 
Plan and maintenance of 4.2% in reserves.   
 
There was discussion about which side of the 60/40 New Tourism Initiatives are funded – Brett 
Bossard said he had not realized before that NTI funds come from the 60% marketing portion of 
the funds. Tom Knipe pointed out that many of our programs act on both sides of this split. Also, 
as indicated in the Strategic Tourism Plan, the STPB has indicated that they wish to revisit this 
formula, but not as part of the 2013 budget process. Fred Bonn asked for the Committee 
members’ thinking on recommending CVB receive a 2% increase, as opposed to the 3.1% 
requested. Members responded that this is the largest overall amount in the budget, and 
commented on the Teachers’ Winter Recess program. Also the amount of budget growth 
available in agreggate to existing programs (not including the County allocation) was 2.7%, even 
as the total budget increase was 3% (not including Strategic Tourism Plan Implementation). Scott 
Wiggins was supportive of providing adequate funding to the CVB as it is the resource that makes 
new hotels, festivals and programming successful. Fred expects to apply for some of the funds 
set aside for Strategic Tourism Plan implementation, and pointed out that media is costing more. 
He will soon hire an Integrated Marketing Manager with new baseline salary. The CVB recently 
performed a wage comparative analysis and determine that their wage structure is competitive. 
Tim Joseph pointed out that the work of the CVB is valued, but that some other programs got no 

STPB Agenda Packet 8/15/12 Page 3 of 52



Tompkins County Strategic Tourism Planning Board (STPB) 
DRAFT Meeting Minutes – June 2012 

Page 3  

increase from 2012. While the CVB didn’t receive the largest percentage increase, it received the 
largest dollar increase. The Budget Committee has to make recommendations. A member could 
move to modify the budget prior to adoption. David announced STPB will vote on the budget at 
the July meeting. He also stated that large sum that is set aside for Strategic Tourism Plan 
Implementation could stream into some of these existing programs. 
 
May CVB Report – Fred Bonn provided hard copies of his report. The Holiday Inn had a 
successful appeal to the Board of Public Works and the renovation project will advance. Fred 
expects to finish staff interviews and make a decision by 7/6. A new search engine provides the 
ability to separate mobile traffic from desktop version traffic for statistics, and actually shows 
growth when taken in this format.  A group sales familiarization tour has been set for September. 
Hospitality Stars conference is taking place this week, with 30 registrants, which is the highest 
number to date. In operating the downtown kiosk, staff members have found themselves in a 
different environment. Although it’s not really dangerous, an Ithaca Police officer is doing an in-
service training to help them learn how to cope with the public on that level. According to the 
Tourism Economics study for 2011, Tompkins shows sustainable growth. Counties on the 
Pennsylvania border have stronger growth, because of gas drilling over the border. La Tourelle 
and August Moon Spa have provided a great package to be used as a prize.  And despite not 
having a river, Ithaca is a nominee for Outside Magazine’s Best River Town Ever. 
 
Chair’s Report – STPB Bylaws were adopted by the Legislature as a part of its Consent Agenda 
at the June 19 meeting.  We are looking forward to a report from the Festivals Committee very 
soon, postponed this month because of our crowded agenda.  STPB minutes and agendas are 
available at http://www.tompkins-co.org/tourism/STPBinformation.htm 
 
Announcements – Rita Rosenberg invited all to the Caroline Farm & Garden Extravaganza on 
7/28 and hopes they will spread the word. She provided promo cards to be shared. Jon Reis 
reminded members there are upcoming projects that were grant-supported: Scottish Games and 
Dragonboat Festival. Susie Monagan added the Shakespeare Festival. Scott announced a 
planting event on Saturday at Stewart Park around the flagpole. The next project for Stewart Park 
will be a children’s playground, being designed with input of Discovery Trail partners. Tom 
announced the Strategic Tourism Plan is out for public comment through July 16, and asked 
members to share that fact. 
 
 
With no further business, the meeting adjourned at 4:50pm. 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
Kathy Wilsea, Secretary 
Tompkins County Planning Department 
 
Approved by STPB on ________, 2012 
 
Next Meetings Scheduled 
Wednesday, July 18 – 3pm  
Wednesday, August 22 – 3pm  

STPB Agenda Packet 8/15/12 Page 4 of 52



Tompkins County Strategic Tourism Planning Board (STPB) 
DRAFT Meeting Minutes – Special Meeting July 9, 2012 

Page 1  

Date:  July 9, 2012  Special Meeting   
Time:  4:00pm 
Location: Convention and Visitor’s Bureau 
 
Attendees: 

Name Representation 

Sue Perlgut  Arts-Culture 

Sue Stafford  TC3 

Susie Monagan  Arts-Culture 

Tim Joseph  At-Large 

VACANT  At-Large 

Brett Bossard  CAP, Non-Voting 

Fred Bonn  CVB, Non-Voting 

Gary Ferguson  DIA, Non-Voting 

Jean McPheeters  Chamber, Non-Voting 

Martha Armstrong  TCAD, Non-Voting 

Will Burbank TC Legislature, Non-Voting 

VACANT  Transportation, Non-Voting 

Tom Knipe  Staff 
 

Also in attendance: Carol Chock (County Legislator), Kathy Wilsea (Tompkins County Planning Dept.)  
 
Agenda 

1. Approval of Draft 2013 Budget 
2. Authorization of Letters of Support 

Discussion 
1. The draft agenda was presented by the Budget Committee at the June 25th meeting.  Rick Adie moved 
to adopt it as the recommended STPB budget for 2013. Seconded by Stu Stein. Guest Carol Chock’s 
questions were answered by providing her with the chart that showed percentages of change and the 
amounts set aside for implementation of the goals of the Strategic Tourism Plan. Motion to adopt passed by 
unanimous voice vote. The budget will proceed to PDEQ and the County Legislature for adoption. 
 
2. Coordinator Tom Knipe reported he has received requests from five tourism partners for letters of 
support for their NYS Consolidated Funding Applications. Those requesting support are the Ithaca Motion 
Picture Project, the Ithaca Commons Redesign, Black Diamond Trail, Stewart Park’s Cascadilla Boathouse 
capital project, and Cayuga Nature Center and PRI. A letter of support would not entail financial support by 
the Tourism Program but could indicate the proposed project is consistent with the draft Strategic Tourism 
Plan. This is support in principle only. The letter would describe the tourism program, similar projects 
previously supported, and mention target numbers for jobs and/or visitors. The letters are due next week. 
Jean McPheeters moved to have decisions on these letters of support and any in the future be made by the 
STPB Chair and go out under the Chair’s signature. Seconded by Jon Reis. Passed by voice vote: yes 8; 
no 0; abstention 1 (Wiggins).  
 
With no further business, the meeting adjourned at 4:20pm. 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
Kathy Wilsea, Secretary 
Tompkins County Planning Department 
 
Approved by STPB on ______, 2012 
 
  

Name Representation 

Anne Kellerman At-Large 

Anthony Hopson  Ithaca College, Vice-Chair 

Beverly Baker  At-Large 

David Sparrow  At-Large, Chair 

Ethan Ash  Arts-Culture 

Gary Stewart  Cornell 

Jon Reis  Arts-Culture 

Ken Jupiter  At-Large 

Paul Tatar  Recreation 

Rick Adie  Lodging 

Rita Rosenberg  Agriculture 

Scott Wiggins  Lodging 

Stuart Stein  At-Large 

STPB Agenda Packet 8/15/12 Page 5 of 52



STPB Agenda Packet 8/15/12 Page 6 of 52



STPB Agenda Packet 8/15/12 Page 7 of 52



STPB Agenda Packet 8/15/12 Page 8 of 52



STPB Agenda Packet 8/15/12 Page 9 of 52



STPB Agenda Packet 8/15/12 Page 10 of 52



STPB Agenda Packet 8/15/12 Page 11 of 52



STPB Agenda Packet 8/15/12 Page 12 of 52



STPB Agenda Packet 8/15/12 Page 13 of 52



STPB Agenda Packet 8/15/12 Page 14 of 52



STPB Agenda Packet 8/15/12 Page 15 of 52



STPB Agenda Packet 8/15/12 Page 16 of 52



STPB Agenda Packet 8/15/12 Page 17 of 52



STPB Agenda Packet 8/15/12 Page 18 of 52



STPB Agenda Packet 8/15/12 Page 19 of 52



STPB Agenda Packet 8/15/12 Page 20 of 52



STPB Agenda Packet 8/15/12 Page 21 of 52



STPB Agenda Packet 8/15/12 Page 22 of 52



STPB Agenda Packet 8/15/12 Page 23 of 52



STPB Agenda Packet 8/15/12 Page 24 of 52



STPB Agenda Packet 8/15/12 Page 25 of 52



STPB Agenda Packet 8/15/12 Page 26 of 52



STPB Agenda Packet 8/15/12 Page 27 of 52



STPB Agenda Packet 8/15/12 Page 28 of 52



STPB Agenda Packet 8/15/12 Page 29 of 52



STPB Agenda Packet 8/15/12 Page 30 of 52



STPB Agenda Packet 8/15/12 Page 31 of 52



STPB Agenda Packet 8/15/12 Page 32 of 52



STPB Agenda Packet 8/15/12 Page 33 of 52



STPB Agenda Packet 8/15/12 Page 34 of 52



Program Description: Tompkins Tourism Partner Award 
 
Tompkins County Legislature and Strategic Tourism and Planning Board’s recognition of 
local individuals who enhance the local economy by bringing conventions and large groups 
to Tompkins County 
 
PURPOSE: 
To recognize individuals, organizations, and associations who through their actions or activities 
have made an impact on the local economy by attracting conventioneers and visitors to 
Tompkins County. Individuals and organizations that are not paid for the purpose of attracting 
these groups are eligible. Convention and Visitors Bureau staff and hotel properties sales staff 
are not eligible. 
 
Attracting and hosting groups or conventions to Tompkins County has a positive impact on the 
entire economy impacting hotels, restaurants, retail sales, rental car agencies, airlines and the 
airport. Sales tax and room tax is positively affected by increasing the number of visitors to 
Tompkins County. 
 
It is further meant to encourage, by creating awareness, the positive impact that tourism and 
conventions can have on the local economy.  It is a “call to action” for all residents to invite the 
associations that they are members of to meet in Tompkins County -- examples would be 
national associations, state associations, hobby groups, social organizations, education 
associations, learned societies, fraternal organizations, and military groups.   
 
WHO IS RECOGNIZED: 
Local community members (and/or local associations, corporations or groups) who have an 
impact on our economy by inviting and hosting groups and conventions through their own 
efforts. Primary recipients would be individuals who are not “convention planners” or sales 
people.  

Additionally, the Strategic Tourism Planning Board at its discretion may from time to time 
recommend recognizing a local company, group or educational institution that brings annual 
business to the County.  (Examples include The CBORD Group Inc., local roads and highway 
superintendents)  

 
QUALIFICATION FOR AN AWARD: 
A minimum of 400 room nights booked – however, Strategic Tourism and Planning Board can 
entertain all nominations on merit.  Weddings are excluded. The award is made only after the 
group has visited the county. 
 
WHAT IS THE AWARD: 
■ It is a certificate and public recognition along with an engraved keystone paver to be installed 
in a designated section of the Waterfront Trail with the recipients name on it. The pavers are to 
be installed at the trailhead near the Tompkins County Chamber and Visitors Center during an 
annual unveiling ceremony. 

■ Awards at the Keystone level ($500 paver)  

 
HOW IDENTIFIED: 
■ Convention and Visitors Bureau Staff 
■ Staff of the Ithaca College and Cornell University Conference and Events Departments 

STPB Agenda Packet 8/15/12 Page 35 of 52



■ Nominations from hotels through the Convention and Visitors Bureau  
■ Nominations from Strategic Tourism and Planning Board and Legislature members 
 
HOW SELECTED: 
■ The Recognition Committee of the STPB reviews nominations. They gather input from the 
Convention and Visitors Bureau if necessary. 

■ The chair of the Recognition Committee and the chair of the STPB ensure that the process of 
selection is fair and objective. 

■ Upon nomination approval, the Recognition Committee forwards their recommendation to the 
full STPB for approval. The approved nominations will then be forwarded to the County 
Legislature for review and final approval. 

 
HOW OFTEN AWARDED: 
Twice a year to keep the event and recognition special. 
 
HOW RECOGNIZED: 
Presentation at either (or both) a Strategic Tourism Planning Board meeting or at a meeting of 
the County Legislature. 
 
BUDGET: 
$2,000 per year made up of four $500 Keystone Awards. Awards were made to TurkeyShoot 
Lacrosse Tournament and Ithaca College NCUR Organizing Committee in early 2012, but 
pavers for these have not yet been installed. Also, other awards have been recommended by 
STPB over the past several years, but not formally approved. Due to these factors, $3,000 is 
recommended for 2012 to grant six awards. Pavers will be purchased in advance each year with 
one check for the Cayuga Waterfront Trail Initiative, a project of the Tompkins County Chamber 
of Commerce Foundation. 
 
HOW PUBLICIZED: 
(Local publicity spurs other community members to action -- local residents will hopefully be 
inspired to invite a group that they are associated with to visit Tompkins County.)  
■ Tompkins County Chamber newsletter 
■ Ithaca Journal Op-Ed 
■ Press release to all local media and University Presses 
 
CALL TO ACTION: 
■ A letter from Strategic Tourism and Planning Board or CVB will be sent to a wide assortment 
of local influencers to make them aware of this award. It will be a call to action to remind them 
that they may be able to invite organizations with which they are affiliated to meet in Tompkins 
County. 
 
NAME FOR RECOGNITION 
■ Tompkins Tourism Partner 
 
Contact information:  

 Tom Knipe, Senior Planner / Tourism Coordinator, tknipe@tompkins-co.org, 274-5560 
 David Sparrow, Chair, STPB, sparrowwine@clarityconnect.com  
 Rick Adie, Chair, STPB Recognition Committee, ra99@cornell.edu 
 Mary Rachun, Group Sales I/TCCVB, mary@visitithaca.com  

STPB Agenda Packet 8/15/12 Page 36 of 52



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Tompkins Tourism Partner Award
Tompkins County Legislative Recognition 

STPB / Convention & Visitors Bureau 
 
 Name of Individual/ 
 Organization to be Recognized  Jane Miller       
  
 Name of Group/Event  Cayuga Lake Triathlon     
 
 Address  PO Box 4134      
   Ithaca, NY 14852    
           
 
 Telephone Number  844-8899      
 
 E-Mail  jmm8@Cornell.edu    
 
 Date Event Occurred Every Aug. since 2002, 2012 event was the 10th Aniv. of CLT 
 Business Brought to Ithaca Based on post event surveys that ask “did you stay overnight 
and did you stay in a hotel or B&B?” it is estimated that each year appox. 393 room nights were generated 
in 2012.   
25% of survey respon. stay in hotel or B&B * 749 athletes in 2012 Tri. * 2.1 avg. # of overnights in 
Hotel/B&B  (Chmura study)  = 393 room nights.  Total estimated impact of the 2012 CLT is $394,965 
based on an avg. travel party size of “3” and an average daily spend of $335 / person. (Chmura)  
 
 Estimated # of Room Nights  393 in 2012       
 
 Hotels Impacted Unknown, organizers made the decision not to have a     
headquarter hotel. 
 
 Comments It is important to note that, because of the start time of the race 
(mandatory racers meeting takes place at 7:30 a.m.) athletes need to stay overnight on Saturday night.  
Also, a survey of registrations shows that 60% are from outside of Tompkins , Cortland, Cayuga, Seneca, 
Tioga, and Schuyler  counties leading me to believe that the 25% of survey respondents indicating that 
they stay in hotel or b&b is actually low.         
Also, Jane Miller and her board have successfully used the STPB’s Marketing and Advertising Grant 
program to establish their race as one of the premier triathlons in the North America.  Their signature 
advertising, supported by an STPB marketing grant, help them increase their visibility such that they were 
invited to be the  host site of the USA Triathlon’s national Sprint distance championship race in 2008.  
Only six years after holding their first race.    
 
 Nominated by:  Fred Bonn      
 
 Affiliation Ithaca/Tompkins  County Convention and Visitors Bureau 
 Address 904 East Shore Drive, Ithaca NY 14850 
   
 Telephone Number 607-272-1313  
 
 E-Mail fred@visitithca.com     
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
 

STPB A i

STPB Agenda Packet 8/15/12 Page 37 of 52



STPB Agenda Packet 8/15/12 Page 38 of 52



STPB Agenda Packet 8/15/12 Page 39 of 52



Tompkins County Strategic Tourism Planning Board
MEMBERSHIP

August, 2012

Name Email Representation First Start Date
Current 
Appointment Date

Current Term 
Start Term Expires

Rita Rosenberg barber.rita@gmail.com Agriculture 2/7/2012 2/7/2012 1/1/2012 12/31/2014
Susie Monagan susiemonagan@gmail.com Arts-Culture 5/19/2009 2/7/2012 1/1/2012 12/31/2014
Rick Adie ra99@cornell.edu Lodging 4/20/2004 2/7/2012 1/1/2012 12/31/2014
Sue Stafford StaffordS@tc3.edu TC3 4/20/2011 2/7/2012 1/1/2012 12/31/2014
Sue Perlgut scperl@verizon.net Arts-Culture 1/18/2011 1/18/2011 1/1/2010 12/31/2012
Anne Kellerman kellerman@prodigy.net At-Large 1/18/2011 1/18/2011 1/1/2010 12/31/2012
Beverly Baker bb@bakertravel.net At-Large 1/16/2001 12/15/2009 1/1/2010 12/31/2012
Ken Jupiter 15steps@danica.com At-Large 6/15/2004 12/15/2009 1/1/2010 12/31/2012
David Sparrow sparrowwine@clarityconnect.com At-Large, Chair 2/19/2002 12/15/2009 1/1/2010 12/31/2012
Anthony Hopson ahopson@ithaca.edu Ithaca College, Vice-Chair 5/18/2010 5/18/2010 1/1/2010 12/31/2012
Ethan Ash ethan.s.ash@gmail.com Arts-Culture 10/18/2011 10/18/2011 1/1/2011 12/31/2013
Tim Joseph tim.joseph@parks.ny.gov At-Large 1/18/2011 1/18/2011 1/1/2011 12/31/2013
VACANT At-Large 1/1/2011 12/31/2013
Jon Reis  jon@jonreis.com Arts-Culture 12/21/1999 1/18/2011 1/1/2011 12/31/2013
Stuart Stein sws8@cornell.edu At-Large 12/4/2001 1/18/2011 1/1/2011 12/31/2013
Scott Wiggins cariba@lightlink.com Lodging 12/21/1999 1/18/2011 1/1/2011 12/31/2013
Gary Stewart gjs28@cornell.edu Cornell University 8/5/2003 1/18/2011 1/1/2011 12/31/2013
Paul Tatar Fishnprof@aol.com Recreation 12/21/1999 1/18/2011 1/1/2011 12/31/2013

Will Burbank wburbank@tompkins-co.org Legislature, Non-Voting Annual
Brett Bossard director@artspartner.org CAP, Non-Voting Ongoing
Fred Bonn fred@VisitIthaca.com CVB, Non-Voting Ongoing
Gary Ferguson gary@downtownithaca.com DIA, Non-Voting Ongoing
Jean McPheeters jean@tompkinschamber.org Chamber, Non-Voting Ongoing
Martha Armstrong marthaa@lightlink.com TCAD, Non-Voting Ongoing
VACANT Government Transportation Ongoing
Tom Knipe tknipe@tompkins-co.org Staff Ongoing

Ex-Officio / Non-Voting Members

STPB Agenda Packet 8/15/12 Page 40 of 52



Applications Due September 6, 2012, 4pm 
 

Application Guidelines – Community Celebrations Grant Program 
Page 1 of 6 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
Community Celebrations Grant Program 

APPLICATION GUIDELINES 
Fall 2012 

Community Celebrations Grants are awarded twice a year by Tompkins County to 
support events in our community that convey our unique culture and history. These 
grants allow us to dig into our past, to educate the public about our cultural inheritances, 
to give residents a way of understanding and enjoying local culture, and to expand 
contemporary local culture in ways that are informative, educational, and just plain fun. 
These grants are available to any recognized community within the County, including 
municipalities and other government entities; traditional, cultural, and ethnic 
organizations; and groups that hope to build on historical, architectural, musical, culinary, 
agricultural, and/or cultural traditions by providing venues for local talent/performers and 
goods produced within the County. 

The goal of these grants is to enhance the quality of life for residents. Carnival-type 
events or attractions are not typically funded. Community Celebrations Grants are 
funded by a room occupancy tax collected by hotels and B&Bs in Tompkins County. This 
is one of several grant programs of the Tompkins County Tourism Program, for which 
the Strategic Tourism Planning Board provides oversight and strategic direction. 

A celebration is an event, program, or series of events endorsed by a municipality that is free 
and open to all, and is planned by community members as a benefit to the community. A 
celebration is also defined as an observance, commemoration, jubilation, inauguration, 
presentation, or any other "red letter day" or salute that has meaning for the community. A 
community is a recognized municipality, or a part thereof, within Tompkins County, a traditional, 
cultural, and/or ethnic organization; and groups that hope to build on historical, architectural, 
musical, culinary, agricultural, and/or cultural traditions by providing venues for local 
talent/performers and goods produced within the County. 
 

Contact 
Tom Knipe, Senior Planner/Tourism Coordinator, tknipe@tompkins-co.org, 607-274-5560 
Applications forms available at: www.tompkins-co.org/tourism  

 
General Guidelines 

All events must be free and open to the public without discrimination. 

 The grant review committee will ask the question: is this event a real celebration that 
builds community? That is the question that applicants should also address. 

STPB Agenda Packet 8/15/12 Page 41 of 52



Applications Due September 6, 2012, 4pm 
 

Application Guidelines – Community Celebrations Grant Program 
Page 2 of 6 

 The review committee encourages applicants to think of all the ways life here is made 
richer by the area’s history, folk life, architecture, ethnicity, and historic events. Grant 
applications will be reviewed by a number of committees, and awards will be made by 
the Tompkins County Legislature. 

Applicants are encouraged to source goods and services locally. 
 

Funds Available 
The total amount of funds available for all awards in the Fall 2012 round is $4,875. Individual 
grants may be requested for up to $2,000. In exceptional situations, an application be made to 
exceed this amount, but strong reasons must be given to support such a request. The minimum 
request is for $500. Award payments will be paid directly to municipalities; successful grant 
applicants should contact their individual municipality for payment instructions. All unspent 
funds will be returned to the County.  

 
Fundable expenses include, but are not limited to: 

 Local artists, performers, or providers of cultural programming 

 Support for volunteers 

 Certain professional services needed to produce a successful Celebration 

 Educational materials 

 Food is fundable only if it is related to the theme of the event, and is demonstrated to the 
audience. Example: if the event celebrates Italian culture, then the grant could be used for the 
purchase of Italian food and a cooking demonstration 

 Reusable banners 

 
Ineligible expenses 

 Bounce houses, carnival type rides, gifts, fireworks, building repairs or alterations, prizes. 

 Staff time 

 
Details 

 Under New York State Law, not all entities are eligible to receive funding from County 
government.  For example, Tompkins County government may only award a grant to another 
municipality or certain not-for-profit agencies. Before completing the application, please consult 
with your accountant or attorney to confirm that your organization is eligible to receive money 
from a County government. For-profit organizations are not eligible to receive a grant. 

 Events that exclusively promote religious traditions are ineligible. 

 Award decisions are made twice annually on a competitive basis. A previous award for the 
same event does not guarantee future funding. 

 Preference will be given to applications containing components of local culture, heritage, 
and/or history. 

 The celebration must take place in Tompkins County. 

STPB Agenda Packet 8/15/12 Page 42 of 52



Applications Due September 6, 2012, 4pm 
 

Application Guidelines – Community Celebrations Grant Program 
Page 3 of 6 

 Applicants must demonstrate a financial match of at least 50%. The match can be met through 
cash support from other sources, event revenues, and/or in-kind contributions. 

 Donated goods and professional services may be considered in-kind contributions.  

o Volunteer time may be included towards a calculation of in-kind contributions only 
where this time would otherwise need to be replaced by paid staff time or paid 
professional services. General event volunteers, such as registration volunteers or 
organizing committee members, may NOT be counted towards in-kind support for the 
purposes of demonstrating a match, but the time contributed by a volunteer event 
organizers, photographers, massage therapists, face painters, musicians, etc. may be 
counted. Where the specific value of the service is not estimated directly by the service 
provider, use an estimate of $21.79 per hour1.   

o The value of donated goods will be their estimated retail value. 

 
Ineligibility for future funding 

Organizations failing to acknowledge support from the Tompkins County Tourism Program will 
become ineligible for future funding. 

Organizations failing to furnish a grant report within 30 days of the completion of the 
Celebration will become ineligible for future funding. 

 
Schedules - When to apply: 

Submit application in the Spring grant round if the event occurs May-December (of the year 
of application) 
 
Submit application in the Fall grant round if the event occurs January-April (of the next year) 

 
Review Committee 

A review committee from the Strategic Tourism Planning Board (STPB) will evaluate requests 
for grants. It will be chaired by the County Historian, and will have at least three members of 
the STPB and one member of the PDEQ (Planning, Development and Environmental Quality) 
Committee of the Tompkins County Legislature. The committee is responsible for presenting a 
recommendation for the allocation of Community Celebration Grant funds to the STPB, which 
will then make a recommendation to the appropriate legislative committee.  

                                                 
1 This is an independent estimate of the value of volunteer time in the United States in 2011.  Source: Independent Sector.  
http://www.independentsector.org/volunteer_time 

STPB Agenda Packet 8/15/12 Page 43 of 52



Applications Due September 6, 2012, 4pm 
 

Application Guidelines – Community Celebrations Grant Program 
Page 4 of 6 

Evaluation Criteria 
The review committee will score applications based on an assessment of how well an 
application meets the following criteria: 

 
 Cultural and Historic Value – 25% 

 The event is a real celebration that builds community 
 Significant historical educational elements are incorporated 
 Components of local heritage or culture are highlighted 

 
 Community Value – 25% 

 Demonstrates broad and deep community support through partnerships, financial and 
in-kind contributions, and volunteers 

 Supports local talent and performers, and sources locally grown food, local 
manufactured products and services from local businesses 

 Tradition: demonstrates a history of importance to the community 
 For new celebrations, demonstrates a compelling vision and innovative addition to local 

festival offerings 
 Demonstrates coordination with other partners of the Tompkins County Tourism 

Program 
 
 Clarity of Application – 20% 

 A detailed and interesting description of the celebration is provided 
 A clear and complete budget that identifies all event costs, projected revenue, in-kind 

support and what part of the event the grant would be used for, is presented 
 A means of measuring attendance is provided 
 No information is missing, and the application is free of grammatical and numerical 

mistakes 
 The application is submitted in the format requested 

 
 Ability to Deliver – 10% 

 Demonstrates organizational capacity to produce a successful celebration 
 Offers an event plan  
 Demonstrates evidence of reflection, learning and adjustment from past events 
 Demonstrates evidence of using technical assistance provided by the Tompkins County 

Festivals Program 
 
 Diversity – 10% 

 Promotes social diversity and inclusion  
 Promotes geographic diversity in the distribution of Community Celebrations grant funds 

 
 Sustainability – 10% 

 Employs sustainable event management practices 
 Actively promotes environmental sustainability 

STPB Agenda Packet 8/15/12 Page 44 of 52



Applications Due September 6, 2012, 4pm 
 

Application Guidelines – Community Celebrations Grant Program 
Page 5 of 6 

Tompkins County Festivals Program 
Grant applicants are strongly encouraged to take advantage of resources provided by the 
Tompkins County Festivals Program. The following resources may be available for your 
Tompkins County-based celebration. 

 Annual event management workshops – various topics.  Led by the Downtown Ithaca 
Alliance and Tompkins County Tourism Program. 

 Technical event assistance. Topics of potential individualized technical assistance include, 
but are not limited to: budgeting and fundraising, site planning and permitting, volunteer 
management, site management, succession planning, etc.  

 Event equipment loan service. 

 Vendor lists. 

 
For more information, visit the Tompkins Festivals website at www.tompkinsfestivals.com   
(Enter Username: tcfestivals, and password: festivals) 
 
For more information about any of these services contact Tompkins Festivals Program 
Coordinator Vicki Taylor-Brous at the Downtown Ithaca Alliance, vickit@downtownithaca.com, 
or Senior Planner/Tourism Coordinator Tom Knipe, tknipe@tompkins-co.org.   
 

 
Important Notes 

All grant recipients must acknowledge the Tompkins County Tourism Program in advertising, 
collateral and promotional materials with the following phrase: 

This program was made possible by a grant from the Tompkins County Tourism 
Program. 

Or, if more appropriate, you may recognize the Tourism Program with this phrase: 

This program was made possible, in part, by a grant from the Tompkins County 
Tourism Program.   

A logo is available for web-based purposes on the Tourism Program website: 
http://www.tompkins-co.org/tourism/ 

Grant recipients must submit a grant report within 30 days of the completion of the project. In 
the absence of a report, funding requests by the same organization will not be considered for 
the next two years. 

A .pdf file of the completed application form should be emailed to Tom Knipe at the 
Tompkins County Planning Department - tknipe@tompkins-co.org - by 4pm on September 6th, 
2012. The application may also be submitted by hand or by mail by the same time and date to 
the Tompkins County Planning Department at 121 East Court Street, Ithaca, New York 14850. 
Upon submission, applicants will receive an email confirmation of receipt. 

Applicants must also deliver one copy of the application to the municipality where the event will 
take place. Funds for successful applications will be sent directly to the municipality, not to 
individuals or groups. 

STPB Agenda Packet 8/15/12 Page 45 of 52



STPB Agenda Packet 8/15/12 Page 46 of 52



STPB Agenda Packet 8/15/12 Page 47 of 52



STPB Agenda Packet 8/15/12 Page 48 of 52



STPB Agenda Packet 8/15/12 Page 49 of 52



STPB Agenda Packet 8/15/12 Page 50 of 52



STPB Agenda Packet 8/15/12 Page 51 of 52



STPB Agenda Packet 8/15/12 Page 52 of 52


	8_15_2012_STPB_agenda
	06_20_2012_STPB_minutes
	07_09_2012_STPB_minutes_special
	Tourism Partner Award- DESCRIPTION-BGonly
	STPB Board List-august 2012
	2012-fall-CELEBRATIONS-GUIDELINES
	Commons LOS - STPB
	IMPP LOS
	CNC LOS - STPB
	PRI LOS - STPB
	FOSP LOS - STPB



